* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 63

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

29 October 1997

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE
FCCC SUBSIDARY BODIES
28 OCTOBER 1997

Delegatesto the eighth session of the Ad Hoc Group onthe
Berlin Mandate (AGBM-8) convened non-group sessions on quan-
tified emission limitation and reduction obj ectives (QELROs),
Article4.1and policiesand measures (P& Ms). The seventh session
of the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Technical Advice
(SBSTA-7) helditsfinal sessionintheafternoon and considered
draft conclusionsand decisionson: methodol ogical issues; the
roster of experts; activitiesimplemented jointly (AlJ); cooperation
withrelevant international organizations; and transfer of technol o-
gies. AnNGO briefing washeld inthe morning.

NGO BRIEFING

The Chair of the second QEL ROsnon-group, BoKjellén
(Sweden), said consultationsare underway on aparagraph
covering countrieswith economiesin transition. Text on banking
and borrowing will betaken up again oncethe other QELROs
group has addressed emission budgets. He said he had made
proposalsregarding trading and joint implementation. He said the
non-group hopesto polishtextsand narrow differences so that
variouselementsare easier tofitinto afina agreementin Kyoto.

Luiz Gylvan MeiraFilho (Brazil), Chair of thefirst QELROs
non-group, said intense activity continued in contact groups. Oneis
considering differentiation, attempting to definecriteriarather than
aformula, which seemsto be"impossible." Onthe question of
using single-year net emissionsor amulti-year budget approach, he
said the non-group isstill struggling with how to deal with different
gases. Discussions continue on using greenhouse warming poten-
tials (GWPs) or other mechanismsto account collectively for a
number of gases.

Chair Estradasummarized the activity of the non-group on
existing commitmentsunder FCCC Article4.1. He said the negoti-
ations appeared to beina"time machine" with del egations
repeating positions he had heard 30 yearsago, theresult: "totally
nonsense." Developing countriesare asking for aspecific reference
totechnology transfer; developed countriesaretrying to avoid one.
In paragraphsrelating to financial support, he said delegateswere
developing aformulato specify which actionswarrant full and
whichincremental support.

Oninstitutions and mechanisms, non-group Chair Takao
Shibata (Japan) said the group agreed that the Convention COP
should serve asthe protocol Meeting of Parties(MOP), and that
other Convention bodies should serveaprotocol. Specific func-
tionsof the MOP areto be decided. Delegatesare al so discussing
whether to usethe number of ratifications and/or apercentage of
total emissionsasthebasisfor ratification.

Chair Estradasaid the non-group on policies & measures
(P& Ms) wasdiscussing three main proposals: the EU prefers
mandatory P& Mswith consultationsto coordinate their implemen-
tation; anumber of JUSCANZ countries opposes mandatory
P& Msbut may retain the ability to sel ect some; and the G-77/
CHINA isseeking criteriato ensure devel oping countriesare not
negatively affected by P& Ms.

SBSTA

SBSTA considered draft conclusionson devel opment and
transfer of technology. Under the draft conclusions, SBSTA: noted
the need to accel erate the process of providing information; urged
Partiesto provide commentson (an) international centre(s) and
reguested SBI to consider funding options; and agreed to consider
at itsninth session additions or amendmentsto the revised guide-
linesfor national communications. Under the draft decision for
COP-3, the COPwould, inter alia, request the Secretariat to
consult with the GEF and other international organizationsontheir
ability to support thework of (an) international centre(s); requests
SBI to consider optionsfor funding (an) international centre(s);
and urge Partiesto create an enabling environment to further stimu-
late private sector investment in and transfer of technology.

On methodological issues, del egates considered adraft deci-
sion for adoption by COP-3 (FCCC/SBSTA/1997/L..5) under
which SBSTA reaffirmsthat Parties should use the Revised 1996
Guidelinesfor National GHG inventories of the| PCC. Thedraft
decision also contained bracketed text reaffirming that Global
Warming Potentials (GWPs) used by Parties should bethose
provided by the |PCC. The US proposed removing the brackets.
CHINA said the paragraph should be del eted. The Chair noted that
the AGBM Chair had requested advicefrom SBSTA and the
substance of the answer isindependent of any AGBM outcome.
MALAY SIA and the EU said adecision on thisshould await the
outcome of the protocol negotiations. Del egates agreed that no
decision should be produced.

Delegates agreed to draft conclusionsunder which SBSTA
reguested the Secretariat to prepare areport that identifiesthe gaps
faced by devel oping countriesin research and devel opment on
methodol ogiesrelated to GHG inventories. Following an amend-
ment from the EU, SBSTA further concluded that adjustments, in
particular temperature adjustments, to national GHG inventory and
projectionsmay beauseful tool for assessing the effectiveness of
P& Ms.

SBSTA adopted draft conclusions on theroster of experts. In
utilizing theroster, SBSTA requested the Secreteriat, inter alia, to
takeinto account certain criteriasuch asexperts relevant profes-
sional backgroundsand ensuring balanced regional representation.
SBSTA also concluded that, to date, "there had not been sufficient
experiencetofully evaluatethe utility of theroster or itsuseby the

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bull etin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ulst.ac.uk> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor isPamelaChasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor isL angston JamesKimo|
Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.Thesustaining donorsof the Bulletin arethe Netherlands Ministry for Devel opment Cooperation, the Government of Canadaand the United States|
of America (through USAID). Support for this edition was also provided by the UNFCCC Secretariat and the Canadian Pulp and Paper Association. General support for the|
Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DID) of the United Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European
Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety, the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the
Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. |1SD
can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, ManitobaR3B 0Y 4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinionsexpressedin ENB
arethose of the authorsand do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD and other funders. Excerptsfrom ENB may be used in non-commerical publicationsonly and only with
appropriate academic citation. Electronic versions of ENB are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 63 - 29 October 1997

Page 2

Secretariat” and requested further eval uation of

theroster for COP-5. SBSTA forwarded the synthesisreport on
activitiesimplemented jointly (AlJ) to the COP, and recommended
adraft decision to be adopted by COP-3 reaffirming decision 5/
CP.1onAlJunder the pilot phase, taking note of the synthesis
report and adopting the uniform reporting format containedin
document FCCC/SBSTA/1997/INF.3.

On cooperation with international organizations, WMO
commented on two documentsrequested by SBSTA: areport by
the Conference on the World Climate Change Research Program
and adocument that exploreswaysto further enhance coordination
between thework of international organizations. The International
Civil Aviation Organization (ICAQ) reported onitsincreased
cooperation withthe COP, particularly through research on the
impact of emissionsfrom aircraft engineson climate change.

UNEPintroduced areport on the Technology and Economic
Assessments Under the Montreal Protocol: Termsof Reference
and Future Work. Parties commented on Item 3 (FCCC/SBSTA/
1997/8; MISC.6). MONGOLIA and MALAY SIA noted the need
to enhancetheglobal observation network. AUSTRALIA saidthe
mai ntenance of long-term homogenousrecordsare essential for
global and regional climate monitoring. He urged the GEFto
consider further funding of GHG monitoring. CANADA encour-
aged Partiesto sustain and expand the Global Atmosphere Watch
network. The EU recommended that the WM O work with the |PCC
and otherson network design, harmonization and analysis. He
urged the GEF to support devel oping countries’ observation
capacity. TheUS said the WM O’ s concerns about thelong term
sustainability of the global monitoring system must betaken seri-
ously. UGANDA said thelack of dataon Africawasaserious
concern. He called onthe GEF to assist.

The Chair introduced hisdraft conclusionson cooperation with
relevant international organizations. The US suggested areference
to SBSTA’sdesireto givefurther consideration to observation
systemsat itsnext session. On Party submissionsfor the |PCC
TAR, the EU noted that some Parties have a ready submitted
policy-relevant questions. On alist of key issuesto be addressed in
the TAR (Annex I), CHINA added general suggestionson
improving assessments by narrowing the range of uncertaintiesand
indicating the limitations of results, and on the advisory nature of
reports. On cooperation with the IPCC (Annex I1), the UK intro-
duced amendmentsto specify the nature of the IPCC’ s prompt
responsesto SBSTA’ srequestsfor input. On observational
networks (Annex [11), the USintroduced two new paragraphs. one
recognizing concernsraised by rel evant intergovernmental organi-
zationsregarding thelong term sustainability of observation
systems, and asecond, incorporating a Canadian addition,
requesting that the SBSTA, through the Secretariat and the [PCC,
consider the adequacy of observing systemsand report to COP-4.
With suggestionsfrom UGANDA and MALAY SIA, CANADA
introduced areplacement paragraph calling on Partiesto provide
the necessary resourcesto reverse the declinein systematic obser-
vation networksand support observational system devel opment.
SBSTA adopted thereport of its seventh session contained in docu-
ment FCCC/SBSTA/1997/CRP.4.

QELROs-1 NON-GROUP

Onecoutry presented aregional group's"bubble concept” for
group membersto shareacollective emissionstarget. A number of
Parties objected to the proposal. One Party supportedit. No agree-
ment was reached.

QELROs-2 NON-GROUP

The non-group chaired by Bo Kjellén (Sweden) discussed arti-
clesonvoluntary commitments, national communications, inven-
toriesand monitoring of commitments. A group of countries
proposed del eting aparagraph on voluntary commitmentsindi-

cating that these were adisguised form of new commitmentsfor
developing countries. A regional group stated that voluntary
commitmentsallowed countriesto participate according to their
own capacitiesand capabilities. A comment to the effect that the
articlewould allow devel oped non-Annex | Partiesto takeon
commitments, met objection by three countries. A sub-paragraph
becamethe chapeau of the article on national communications.
Two delegationsinsisted on the del etion of asub-paragraph
concerning the coordination of expert teamsby the Secretariat. A
delegation proposed text to the effect that the review processshall
provide athorough and comprehensive assessment of aParty's
implementation of the Convention. A proposal by aregional group
for "all Parties" to be subject to aperiodic review of their commit-
ments, was opposed by one del egation. Some del egates noted some
improvement in the general toneof thediscussions.

ARTICLE 4.1 NON-GROUP

Thenon-group completed itslast meeting at AGBM-8 with
agreement only on achapeau. Thenon-group Chair presented
revised textsfor most paragraphsinthe AGBM Chair'sdraft
article. Delegates discussion focused on three. In aparagraph on
national communications, del egates discussed anumber of brack-
eted alternatives. | nthe paragraph on national programmes, agroup
of countries said the paragraph represents new commitmentsfor
developing countries. A Party suggested that thetext fleshes out
existing commitments. One Party objected to text on removing
obstaclesto the"limitation" of anthropogenic emissions. Another
proposed "limitation or abatement intheincrease” of emissions.

Inaparagraph onreporting, aParty proposed moving thetext
into aseparate protocol article. A group of countriessaid the para-
graph should be divided to define Annex-1 and non-Annex-I
responsibilities. A regional group objected to separating devel oped
and devel oping country responsibilitiesin the paragraph. Onthe
draft article on finance, the non-group discussed various proposals
for bracketed portions of the text without reaching consensus.

POLICIES AND MEASURES NON-GROUP

The non-group on policiesand measures (P& Ms) discussed a
paragraph suggesting that P& M s should " minimize adverse effects
on other Parties." A group of countries suggested amending thetext
to"avoid" effectsand to list specific climate, economic and trade
effects. The group also proposed areferenceto acompensation
fund for affected developing countries, or across-referenceto such
afundinthearticle on QEL ROs. Other del egations objected to the
proposals. A regional group proposed that the P& Msimplementa-
tion "takeaccount of" adverse effects. The group also suggested
substituting Convention language for a sentence describing actions
the MOP might take. The meeting paused so asmall group could
seek consensus language.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Asnegotiationsin two non-groupswrapped up their work with
few agreements, the only statement gaining consensusin the corri-
dorsappeared to be"send it to Kyoto." Delegatesand observers
havereported that negotiatorsin Bonn are unable, unwilling or
without political authority to push major issuesbeyond the steady
and longstanding disagreementsthat have characterized AGBM-8.
Somedelegates said it was difficult to expect more at this stage, but
othersworried that some new strategy was needed to salvage
greater progress before the climate negotiations|eavetown.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY
NGO Briefing: AnNGO briefingwill beheld at 9:30 am.
SBI: SBI will meet at 10:00 am.
Non-groups: Consult thejournal for non-group meetings.



